



La European Consultation on Public Education and AIDS Prevention "Youth and AIDS:

Health Promotion and Health Education outside Schools"

Cologne, 8-11 October 1989

ARCHIVEXEMPLAR

Reg.-No. 140024 (14.24)



FEDERAL CENTRE FOR HEALTH EDUCATION





WHO-COLLABORATING CENTRE FOR HEALTH EDUCATION

IIIrd European Consultation on
Public Education and AIDS Prevention
"Youth and AIDS: Health Promotion
and Health Education outside Schools"

Cologne, 8 - 11 October 1989

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
Introduction	1
Scope and Purpose	2
Programme	7
Topics and Conclusions	13
Recommendations	16
List of Participants	20
List of Working Papers	32

FEDERAL CENTRE FOR HEALTH EDUCATION





WHO-COLLABORATING CENTRE FOR HEALTH EDUCATION

IIIrd European Consultation on
Public Education and AIDS Prevention
"Youth and AIDS: Health Promotion
and Health Education outside Schools"

Cologne, 8 - 11 October 1989

INTRODUCTION

The third European Consultation on Public Education and AIDS Prevention held between 8-11 October 1989 in Cologne was organised by the Federal Centre for Health Education in cooperation with the WHO-Regional Office for Europe.

After a first Consultation on the issue of public education for AIDS in general (1987), and a second one on AIDS/HIV in the workplace (1988), the 1989 Consultation addressed the issue of youth and AIDS. Particularly youth outside schools and hard-to-reach adolescent groups through health promotion and health education were of interest in the meeting.

The 52 participants from 24 countries discussed 27 working papers in 6 plenary sessions and three working groups. Further, a forum and platform for the sharing of practical methods and experience was established in the form of a 'bazaar', a market place of national and regional activities in the realm of AIDS/HIV prevention. Finally, in two workshops practical AIDS intervention approaches were presented (sex education methods I and II, and the theatre project 'An AIDS Education Project: Who's Problem ?').

The wide range of professionals, policy-makers and researchers greatly valued the opportunity to exchange different ideas and approaches to the issue of AIDS/HIV prevention for youth outside schools.

Four key issues for the consultation were discussed:

- country-specific epidemiological and social science data on the sexual behaviour of young people and on their present and future exposure to HIV in the countries of the European Region;
- 2. general sociocultural and political settings for AIDS prevention outside schools in the countries concerned;
- concepts and practical experience in AIDS prevention outside schools with particular reference to possible connections with AIDS prevention in schools;
- 4. particular scope will be given to the presentation of practical action and methods.

FEDERAL CENTRE FOR HEALTH EDUCATION





WHO-COLLABORATING CENTRE FOR HEALTH EDUCATION

Third European Consultation on Education for AIDS Prevention
"Youth and AIDS: Health Promotion and Health Education outside schools"

- Cologne, October 8 - 11, 1989 -

SCOPE AND PURPOSE

1. Overall framework

In January 1988 the World Conference of Ministers of Health adopted the London Declaration on AIDS Prevention stating that instruction and education are to be considered "the single most important component of national AIDS programmes". Instruction and education programmes should address both the general public and specific target groups "and should take full account of social and cultural patterns, different lifestyles and human and spiritual values".

On this basis the Federal Centre for Health Education, a WHO Collaborating Centre for Health Education, organizes in cooperation with the WHO Regional Bureau for Europe annual European Consultations within the Global AIDS Programme of WHO (Geneva). The First Consultation (1987) treated general questions of the relationship between public health education and AIDS prevention. The Second Consultation (1988) was focussed on the specific problems of AIDS prevention in the workplace. The overall subject selected for the Third Consultation is 'Youth and AIDS / AIDS Prevention outside schools'.

The Conference will present and discuss approaches to health promotion and health education for AIDS prevention outside institutions of public education. The focus of the exchange of information and experience will be on possibilities for preventively reaching and influencing sexually maturing or sexually active young people, i.e. young men and women between 12 and 20 years of age, within their peer cultures. This indication of age is, however, not intended to restrict the scope of the practical models. Particular attention will be given to regional and national specificities as well as to the problem of hard-to-reach target groups and subcultures.

2. Goals and problems of AIDS prevention for young people

At our present state of knowledge AIDS prevention for young people comprises four major goals:

 factual information on risks of infection, routes of infection, possibilities for protection, guidance, and available assistance;

- promotion of the young person's capability for communication on intimate matters and support for sexual behaviour characterized by self-determination and a positive attitude to sexuality and eroticism, enlightened protection of oneself as well as of one's sexual partner, and responsible partnership;
- encouragement of understanding for differing sexual and social lifestyles so as to allow HIV infected persons and AIDS patients to be treated as fellow beings in a spirit of solidarity;
- educational and structural influencing of high-risk intravenous drug users or addicts by preventing the use of possibly contaminated injection sets.

Preventive efforts in the field of AIDS encounter numerous difficulties. Contrary to other health-related or social risk themes, intimate, non-public, and fear-loaded contexts of experience and styles of communication have to be addressed. Preventive work with young people in particular frequently reaches its limits here. Last but not least, in all civilizations AIDS prevention affects not only personal fears but also general societal taboos and conflict-ridden problems of morality, values, and standards.

3. Sexual behaviour of young people and starting points for AIDS prevention

From the point of view of AIDS prevention during and after puberty the following developmental tasks of adolescence are of particular importance:

- coping with physical changes and development of a sex-specific "body image";
- acquisition and shaping of sex roles for the development of personal and social identity;
- quality and time of gathering of sexual experience as well as of the establishment or maintenance of (short, medium or long-term) intimate partnerships;
- extent and function of preparedness to risk-taking in the physical, psychosocial, and sociocultural fields.

In this connection, in addition to the family and the institutions of public education, spaces and groups of peer culture gain a decisive importance in many countries of the European Region. Peer groups and the environment outside schools become an important framework for experience and events as concerns the starting of partnerships as well as communication on intimate questions and problems.

It is known from international studies that young people increasingly withdraw from intrafamilial communication on their intimate experience and sexual contacts. The function of trusted reference individuals is fulfilled by peers and, to some extent, also by educational reference individuals such as teachers or social workers.

In addition, a significant aspect of AIDS prevention is the fact that during their first sexual intercourse only a small proportion of young people take precautions against unwanted pregnancy or a possible HIV infection. The condom is still an insufficiently widespread and inconsistently used means of prophylactic protection.

Many adolescents feel very much insecure in their sexual searching and experimentation because of the HIV threat. This stage of their development is problematic in any case, as they begin to experiment sexually (which is differently realized and accepted in the various European regions depending on the culture concerned) preparing themselves for choosing a partner later on. Due to AIDS, they have to cope with an additional problem, which is moreover often presented in dramatic exaggeration in the public information media. Accordingly, many adolecents often develop an unrealistic and partly even hysterical fear of an HIV infection during their sexual learning and their partnerships.

4. Approaches and target groups for AIDS prevention for young people

Health promotion has to start where young people live, work, and love. This Consultation will deal with groups in which young people come together on a voluntary basis in the context of their everyday activities and their life worlds.

Groups and institutions in which young people are compulsorily involved for economic, legal or other reasons — e.g. the school, the workplace or the armed forces — will not be dealt with in this Consultation, mainly because they were/will be discussed at former or future meetings.

This focus on groups and institutions with voluntary membership as well as on the life worlds of young people presents considerable advantages as compared with institutionalized establishments:

- Young people are less restricted by external regulations, which makes them more flexible and gives them better possibilities for receiving information and communicating it according to the needs of their age and their group membership.
- Young people develop less distrust with respect to messages of prevention than in the authoritarian structures of institutionalized establishments.

Voluntary-membership groups of this kind also comprise organized work with young people, i.e. Boy Scouts (Girl Guides), Red Cross youth groups, sports clubs, etc.

Life worlds of young people to be included are e.g.: sports meetings, pop concerts, discos, bars, youth clubs, restaurants, parks, and other meeting points for young people.

The needs of the "hard-to-reach" will also be addressed within the Third Consultation in a separate workshop focussing on special methods ("street-corner work"/"drop-in centres").

The target group of hard-to-reach young people includes those young people, who due to particular problem situations, so far have only to a limited extent or not at all been receptive to preventive information or assistance offered.

These are e.g.:

- adolescents with a low level of education or vocational training, in particular school and vocational training dropouts as well as unemployed;
- adolescents from foreign families;
- socially uprooted adolescents, in particular runaways and "street kids";
- adolescent drug users and drug addicts as well as male and female prostitutes (streetwalkers).

5. Goals and subjects for deliberation at the Consultation

The main purpose of the Consultation will be a comprehensive exchange of information amoung practitioners, politicians and researchers from the 32 countries of the European Region of the WHO. It will be focussed on a stocktaking of developing trends and requirements in the fields of health policy, concepts, and practical applications for AIDS prevention for adolescents outside schools. Particular emphasis will be given above all to the presentation of practical methods and actions. On this basis the participants are expected to develop concrete recommendations for major future prevention activities that can be implemented within their own cultural context. Another goal will be the establishment of a European network of professionals and institutions in this field.

The major topics to be dealt with at the Consultation are the following:

- country-specific epidemiological and social science data on the sexual behaviour of young people and on their present and future exposure to HIV in the countries of the European Region;
- general sociocultural and political setting for AIDS prevention outside schools in the countries concerned;
- concepts and practical experience in AIDS prevention outside schools with particular reference to possible connections with AIDS prevention in schools;
- particular scope will be given to the presentation of practical actions and methods.

The participants from each country are requested to prepare information and discussion papers on their concepts of prevention and practical experience in the form of "case studies" (see annex). Together with three policy statements and an information bazaar these participants' reports will serve as a basis for plenary discussions and group activities.

The policy statements will deal with three sets of questions:

- epidemiology and future scenarios of HIV infections and AIDS cases in the young population of the countries of the European Region;
- the impact of AIDS on the sexual behaviour of young people and their way of choosing a partner
- sex and choosing a partner in the context of the universal developmental tasks of adolescence: consequences for concepts, methods, and target groups in AIDS prevention.

The 50 participants will come from the countries of the European Region. They are members of the network "Health education and AIDS", representatives of governmental and non-governmental organizations versed in AIDS prevention and youth welfare as well as representatives of youth and self-help organizations.

The working languages will be German and English.

FEDERAL CENTRE FOR HEALTH EDUCATION





WHO-COLLABORATING CENTRE FOR HEALTH EDUCATION

ICP/GPA 011

IIIrd European Consultation on Public Education and AIDS Prevention "Youth and AIDS: Health Promotion and Health Education outside Schools"

Cologne, 8 - 11 October 1989

PROGRAMME

Sunday, 8 October 1989

up to 17.00 hrs

17.00 - 18.00 hrs

18.00 - 19.30 hrs

Arrival of Participants

Registration

Opening of the Consultation Welcome of participants Statements of participating organisations:

- Dr. Elisabeth Pott, Director,
 Federal Centre for Health
 Education, Cologne
- Dr. Hans-Peter Voigt, MP, Chairman of the Inquiry Commission on AIDS of the Deutsche Bundestag
- Franz Josef Bindert, Head of the Co-ordinating Office for AIDS, Federal Ministry of Youth, Family Affairs, Women and Health, Bonn
- Dr. Rosmarie Erben, Global Programme on AIDS, World Health Organization, Geneva
- Dr. Jan Branckaerts, World Health Organization Regional Office for Europe, Copenhagen
- Dr. Albert Tchager, International Union for Health Education, European Bureau, Perugia
- Dr. Demetrio Boniche, Programme Director, World Assembly of Youth, Copenhagen

19.30 hrs

20.00 hrs

Reception

Buffet

Monday, 9 October 1989

08.45 - 09.00 hrs

09.00 - 10.30 hrs

10.30 - 11.00 hrs

11.00 - 12.30 hrs

12.30 - 14.00 hrs

14.00 - 15.00 hrs

Introduction and technical instructions

Plenary session

- "Health promotion and health education with young people outside schools: a new focal point on AIDS prevention in adolescence" (FCHE)
- "Epidemiology of HIV-infection and AIDS in the adolescent population in the countries of the European Region" (WHO-EURO)
- "The influence of AIDS on the sexual behaviour of young people and their partner choice" (Frits Wafelbakker)
- Co-Report: "The influence of AIDS on the sexual behaviour of young people": - Case study GDR (Peter Voss)

Coffee break

Working groups

Theme: "Scenarios and prospects for future developments"

- The HIV-threat for adolescence in the European Region;
- The influence of AIDS on sexual behaviour and partner choice of young people in the regions and cultures of the European Region

Lunch

Plenary session

- "General AIDS prevention strategies for young people outside schools in the countries of the European Region" (short presentations by participants) 15.00 - 15.30 hrs

15.30 - 16.00 hrs

16.00 - 17.30 hrs

18.30 - 20.00 hrs

20.00 - 20.30 hrs

20.30 hrs

Plenary session

- "Primary AIDS prevention for young people outside schools: fundamental elements, concepts and practical experience" (Peter Franzkowiak)

Coffee break

Working groups

- "Concepts, methods and targetgroups of AIDS prevention in adolescence"
- "General strategies for AIDS prevention outside schools (country-specific)"

Dinner

Setting-up of display stands by participants

Bazaar "Health promotion and health education approaches to AIDS prevention for young people outside schools" - Exchange of information and experience

- 1. Presentation of (i.a. audio-visual) material
- 2. Workshops: Main points of research "Youth and AIDS"

Tuesday, 10 October 1989

09.00 - 10.30 hrs

10.30 - 11.00 hrs

11.00 - 12.30 hrs

12.30 - 14.00 hrs

14.00 - 15.30 hrs

15.30 - 16.00 hrs

16.00 - 17.30 hrs

17.30 - 18.00 hrs

Plenary session

- "Innovative models from practical experience presented in case studies" (short presentations by participants)

Coffee break

Plenary session

- "Possibilities and limitations of AIDS prevention outside schools with regard to hard-toreach groups and subcultures" (short presentations by participants)"

Lunch

Working groups

- Specific models from practical experience
- AIDS prevention for hard-toreach target groups

Coffee break

Workshops (Parallel sessions)

- Sex-education methods (1)
"Beyond the Schoolgates: Issues
in Out-of-school HIV / AIDS
Education"
(Peter Aggleton)

Theatre-Workshop: "An AIDS Education Project: Who's problem?"

(Anthony Preston)

Break

18.00 - 19.30 hrs

Workshops (Parallel sessions)

- "Selected sex-education methods" (2)
 - (Peter Franzkowiak)
- Theatre-Workshop: "An AIDS Education Project: Who's problem?" (Anthony Preston)

20.00 hrs

Dinner

An evening out in a typical Cologne brewery-owned restaurant (Brewery "Zur Malzmühle", Heumarkt 6)

Wednesday, 11 October 1989

09.00 - 10.30 hrs

10.30 - 11.00 hrs

11.00 - 12.30 hrs

12.30 - 14.00 hrs

14.00 hrs

Plenary session

Reports from working groups

Discussion of recommendations (FCHE/WHO-EURO)

Coffee break

Plenary session

Adoption of recommendations

Closing statements by official

representatives

Lunch

Departure

Consultation Venue:

Pullmann Hotel Mondial Kurt-Hackenberg-Platz 1 5000 Köln 1

Telephone: (0221) 20 63 - 0

Telex: 8 88 19 32

Telefax: (0221) 20 63 522

FEDERAL CENTRE FOR HEALTH EDUCATION





WHO-COLLABORATING CENTRE FOR HEALTH EDUCATION

IIIrd European Consultation on
Public Education and AIDS Prevention
"Youth and AIDS: Health Promotion
and Health Education outside Schools"

Cologne, 8 - 11 October 1989

TOPICS AND CONCLUSIONS

In her welcoming address, **Dr. Elisabeth Pott**, the Director of the Federal Centre for Health Education, stressed the importance of the Consultation in terms of an on-going effort to reduce AIDS/HIV infection by a wide variety of professionals.

Dr. Hans-Peter Voigt (chairman of the Inquiry Commission on AIDS of the FRG Parliament -Deutscher Bundestag-) and Franz Josef Bindert (Head of the Coordinating Office for AIDS of the Federal Ministry of Youth, Family Affairs, Women and Health) reaffirmed the commitment of the FRG administration to the prevention of the spread of AIDS/HIV.

Dr. Rosmarie Erben (Global Programme on AIDS, WHO/HQ, Geneva) noted that the theme of the Consultation is in line with WHO's special emphasis on the health of youth (Technical Discussions of the World Health Assembly, May 1989). She also highlighted World AIDS Day 1989 (1 December) and noted the contribution of the third European Consultation on Public Education and AIDS Prevention to the objectives of World AIDS Day to strengthen a spirit of solidarity, tolerance, compassion and understanding. The European regional representative of the AIDS Programme, Dr. Jan Branckaerts, wished all participants a fruitful Consultation in this spirit.

Dr. Demetrio Boniche (Programme Director of the World Assembly of Youth) appealed to those present not to forget the sociological importance of the AIDS epidemic for adolescents. He stressed that young people are critical to stopping the spread of AIDS; AIDS presents adolescents with yet another factor in a period of life which already brings dynamic and often confusing changes with it. He referred to an 'ideological and cultural virus' of fear, panic and disinformation, prejudice and immobility first to be addressed. In that respect, the right to self-determination of youth should be recog-

In that respect, the right to self-determination of youth should be recognized.

In the **first plenary session**, technical instructions were given and information provided on general methods and techniques in AIDS prevention in adolescence, epidemiological data on HIV infection, and sexual behaviour of young people and their partner choice in relation to the AIDS epidemic. The various presentations thereby provided the Consultation with common ground for further discussions.

Situational and contextual approaches of target populations in a lifestyle concept seem to yield best results, while mass media and personal communication are most appropriate. Youth inside and particularly outside schools are important target populations, as sexual behaviour in that age group is developed through exploration and within the flexibility of adolescence.

In itself, youth is not an 'at-risk' group as far as epidemiological data are concerned; however, as the incubation period is very long, data show that the group of adolescents is crucial in the stopping of the epidemic. Introduction of safer sex education in the formation of young people is critical to reduce the spread of AIDS. Adolescents may deny or ignore their vulnerability to AIDS; the disease does as yet not seem to play an important role in the exploration of sexuality among young people.

In the **second plenary session**, reports were presented by participants on AIDS prevention approaches in various settings and countries. The session thus gave ample opportunity to explore similarities and differences among countries in the European Region.

Generally, it was noted that AIDS education is an integral part of various sets of comprehensive services, in schools, workplaces and institutions. However, AIDS education may be the first confrontation of youth with explicit sexuality, and should therefore be balanced and carefully implemented.

The use of mediators, multiplicator networks and peer educators is recognized to be of critical importance, especially where hard-to-reach groups are concerned. The latter may have a cynical attitude, e.g. 'street kids' who will have to put all of their energies in daily survival, are hard to sensitize to the AIDS issue. Empowerment and outreach strategies were suggested.

In addition, action which goes beyond just sex education was favoured. A multi-focussed approach, including other sectors than health and education, and penetrating into political life, was suggested.

The third plenary session was specifically aimed at fundamental elements, concepts and some practical experience on primary AIDS prevention for young people outside schools. The avoidance of fear, intolerance, discrimination and punishment were set forth as prime principles in all AIDS intervention programmes. In terms of factual interventions, this stance has, as a consequence, that AIDS/HIV education should move beyond single-shot approaches, and take multifocussed action. Concretely, a move beyond sex education into intersectoral work, and specifically into political life, was favoured.

In plenary sessions, during the second day of the Consultation, experiences from different countries were presented. It became clear that, in each cultural context and within the structural limits set by political and budgetary considerations, all countries were devoting considerable efforts to the fight against the AIDS epidemic.

Generally, it was stressed that the emergence of AIDS should not have posed extreme questions to health education; several presenters demonstrated that AIDS education should be an integral part of sex education, of interventions to reduce the spread of sexually transmitted diseases, and that known channels for information distribution could be used. However, it became clear that professional health educators may still have to learn how to use the settings in which young people outside schools meet, and the ways in which they communicate there.

Moving into the discotheque, youth centre, etc. is considered essential. Further, some agreement existed on the issue that boys and girls may need separate intervention types and approaches, not only on the AIDS issue, but generally in sex education. In addition, the importance of learning, for example, relational skills, enabling young people to use condoms adequately, and the possible mediating functions of sex educators, were underlined.

In three Working Groups (German, English, and mixed German-English) experiences on national as well as local AIDS/HIV prevention programmes in different countries were exchanged. Again, it was demonstrated that although conditions may vary (specifically limited economic prerequisites, but also societal beliefs and attitudes), the thrusts of AIDS programmes were quite similar.

In most Working Group sessions participants devoted a substantial amount of time to the exchange of practical experiences with regard to differences between boys and girls, gay men, and hard-to-reach groups. It was agreed that apart from problems of self-definition and identification of the groups themselves, groups, as named above, do not exist since they are not aggregate social groups as such. Further inquiry into target group segmentation in this respect is urged.

Debates arose also around issues of self-risk assessment amoung young people, the use of fear arousal, and the medicalization of, for instance, IV drug use. Further, a wide array of valuable suggestions were given ('Give young people two condoms; one to play with, the other one for real use ...'). Considerations of these Working Groups are reflected in the Recommendations.

FEDERAL CENTRE FOR HEALTH EDUCATION





WHO-COLLABORATING CENTRE FOR HEALTH EDUCATION

ICP/GPA 011 August 1989 5055f

IIIrd European Consultation on
Public Education and AIDS Prevention
"Youth and AIDS: Health Promotion
and Health Education outside Schools"

Cologne, 8 - 11 October 1989

RECOMMENDATIONS

INTRODUCTION

This consultation is the third in a series of meetings on AIDS/HIV prevention organized by the Federal Centre for Health Education in collaboration with the World Health Organization, Regional Office for Europe. The first one, in 1987, examined the issue of public education, and last year's meeting discussed AIDS/HIV in the workplace. These meetings contribute to the efforts of the Regional Programme on AIDS (RPA) in collaboration with the Global Programme on AIDS (GPA) to reduce the spread of HIV. Other meetings have dealt with, among others, the role of schools and self-help organizations in health education and health promotion. This third meeting was aimed at young people outside schools, including hard-to-reach groups. The latter group will be addressed more specifically in a separate meeting.

The principles of the Ottawa Charter for Health Promotion (enabling, mediating, and advocating), and action areas (reorientation of health services, creation of supportive environments, development of personal skills and strengthening of community action in the framework of healthy public policy) are reaffirmed as applying to AIDS/HIV education in general. In the field of AIDS/HIV prevention there is unanimity about the policy principles developed by the Global Programme on AIDS (GPA) through the UN Assembly on the involvement of all sectors of society, the London Declaration on the role of public information and the World Health Assembly in its fortieth meeting on the avoidance of discrimination.

GENERAL PRINCIPLES

At this stage the epidemic some young people are more vulnerable to HIV infection than others. These include young men who have sex with other men, young IV drug users and their partners. Appropriate steps should be taken to meet the health education needs of these young people.

More research in the realm of AIDS/HIV education in general, and with regard to youth outside schools in particular, should be carried out at different levels, issues and different overlapping communities of interest.

National AIDS committees, health ministries, national youth councils and/or national youth organizations should adopt these recommendations and GPA guidelines, and clarify and adapt them to their own national contexts.

Operational definitions of hard-to-reach groups should be developed according to specific cultural and national settings; care should be taken to develop these on more than one dimension.

Messages in the realm of AIDS/HIV education, which come from different agencies and are disseminated through different channels and settings, should be coordinated in order to achieve consistent and clear messages.

International, national and regional core groups and networks to further develop strategies, action and research in the realm of youth and AIDS should be set up.

At the various political levels strategies will have to be developed which support AIDS/HIV prevention, as a part of health promotion, such as labour market policy, education policy, and community policy.

AIDS/HIV education and information should have as its basis a tolerance towards different lifestyles, avoidance of discrimination, respect for a broad range of sexual behaviour, and should refrain from making moral judgements, and promote a positive attitude towards sexuality, in the context of a given society.

ACTION AND STRATEGIES

AIDS/HIV education should not stand alone. AIDS/HIV, family planning and STD education should become an integral part of sex and relationship education and of innovative endeavours in the fields of drug education and development of personal and social skills; where not available this should be initiated.

Because adult beliefs, attitudes and values may be a prime barrier to effective AIDS/HIV education, significant adults communicating with youth (teachers, professional health educators, volunteers, parents, etc.) should be adequately trained.

Personal communication methods where young people get together (in settings like discotheques, cinemas and youth centres) should be complemented by mass media information for young people.

Methods in the field of youth and AIDS should be participatory, involve young people, use face-to-face contact, be active, and develop skills and attitudes; youth should be trained for such activities. Peer education should be evaluated and supported where appropriate.

Interventions should be differentiated between and within specific groups and should be developed when appropriate. For example for parts of sexual and AIDS/HIV education, separate instructions for boys and girls could be useful.

New approaches in the field of youth and AIDS should be developed through the use of existing networks and organizations in the realms of public health services, medical care provision, welfare institutions, youth organizations. The needs and possibilities for such cooperative strategies should be identified. This in turn should be part of a broader intersectoral approach including health, education, commerce, culture, defence, and welfare sectors.

Different options for the reduction of HIV infection through sexual intercourse should be stressed but, in any case, the rights of young people to selfdetermination in this regard should be respected.

Where people opt for the use of condoms, these prophylactics should be easily available and come with adequate instructions for use.

It is recommended that decision-makers base their policies on basic research, formulative research and evaluation research, and that research should be socially relevant and an integrated part of plans of action; it should, however, not prevent concrete action.

Intervention programmes should be based on insight gained through relevant empirical research. The further development of interventions should be based on evaluation studies, and there should be mechanisms to ensure coordination of research and its effects.

Models of good practice are to be documented, analyzed, evaluated and made available. Case studies are encouraged.

The use of fear arousal, concepts of risk assessment, and use of humour in AIDS/HIV intervention should be carefully considered, and in-depth research is needed.

RESEARCH

The World Health Organization should play a continuing role in making the present knowledge available, and stimulate and coordinate research, develop a database, and disseminate information on AIDS/HIV education.

Where possible, research efforts should aim at compatibility and comparability. WHO/GPA guidelines should be applied as much as possible.

Quantitative research on sexual behaviour of youth in several countries should be extended in order to make adequate comparisons, and acquire adequate baseline information. The use of standard core questions and common theoretical frameworks should be encouraged.

Qualitative research for further understanding of adolescent sexual behaviour and the settings in which it takes place is needed.

Research on the broad variety of individual sexual development and of human relationships is necessary.

It is recommended that educational research should be carried out on the design, targeting and tailoring of messages to the needs of specific groups.

FEDERAL CENTRE FOR HEALTH EDUCATION





WHO-COLLABORATING CENTRE FOR HEALTH EDUCATION

IIIrd European Consultation on
Public Education and AIDS Prevention
"Youth and AIDS: Health Promotion
and Health Education outside Schools"
Cologne, 8 - 11 October 1989
LIST OF PARTICIPANTS

Dr. Peter Aggleton
Head of Education Policy Studies
Director AIDS Projects
Bristol Polytechnic
Redland Hill
GB-Bristol BS6 6UZ
United Kingdom
Tel.: 0272/741251 Ext.2214

Ella Bar-Gai Ministry of Education Jerusalem Israel Tel.:02-238230/1

Franz-Josef Bindert Bundesministerium für Jugend, Familie, Frauen und Gesundheit Leiter des Koordinierungsstabes AIDS Kennedyallee 105-107 D-5300 Bonn 2

Tel.: 0228 / 308-2555 Fax: 0228 / 308-2221

Derek Bodell
AIDS Programme
Health Education Authority
Hamilton House
Mabledon Place
GB-London WC1 H9TX
United Kingdom
Tel.: 01-631 0930

Doortje Braeken Staffmember Rutgersstichting Groot Hertoginnelaan 201 NL-2517 ES Den Haag The Netherlands

Tel.: 070/631750

Fax: 01-387 0550

Dr. Marta Brtnikova Zentralinstitut für Gesundheitserziehung vitézného unora 54 CS-121 139 Prag Tschechoslowakei Tel.: 29 34 01

Dr. Marianna Diomidis
Ministry of Health and Social Welfare
Division of Promotion and Protection
of Health Medical Officer
P.O.Box 14156
GR-11510 Athens
Greece
Tel.: 770/8772 or 3615671

Dr. Sofija Djurić-Vukićević Institut für Öffentliches Gesundheitswesen - Nationale Kommission zur AIDS-Prävention 29, Novembra 54 a YU-11000 Belgrad Jugoslawien Tel.: 011/337351/233

Cees van Eijk
NCAB, Section Education
and Prevention
Polderweg 92
NL-1093 KP Amsterdam
The Netherlands
Tel: 020/939444

Tel:: 020/939444 Fax: 020/927989

Peter Franzkowiak Forschungsstelle Gesundheit Kurfürstenstr. 46 D-6830 Schwetzingen Bundesrepublik Deutschland Tel.: 06202 - 18742

Henri Goedertz Red Cross Luxembourg Parc de la Ville L-2014 Luxembourg Tel: 458737 Heidi Graeßle AIDS Beratung Gesundheitsamt Kiel Fleethörn 18-24 2300 Kiel Bundesrepublik Deutschland 0431 - 9012147

Honika Hachmann
Arbeitsgruppe AIDS
Landesinstitut für Tropenmedizin Berlin
Königin-Elisabeth-Str. 32
looo Berlin 19
Bundesrepublik Deutschland

Tel.: 030 / 3032-741 Fax: 030 / 3032-736

Jan H. Halm Ministry of Health P.O. Box 5406 2280 HK Rijkwijk The Netherlands Tel.: 070/407308 Fax: 070/405194

Dr. Franz-Xaver Heigenhauser Bayerisches Staatsministerium für Arbeit und Sozialordnung - Arbeitsgruppe AIDS -Winzererstr. 9 / Postfach 132 D-8000 München 40 Bundesrepublik Deutschland Tel.: 089/1261-1516

Tel.: 089/1261-1516 Fax: 089/12611122

Dr. Didier Jayle
Directeur
CRIPS
Centre Régional d'information et
de Prévention du SIDA
3 - 5 Rue de Ridder
F - 75014 Paris
France
Tel.: (1) 40 44 40 56

Dr. Jiŕi Holub
Central Institute for Health
Education
Director for IFG
Vitézného unora 54
CS-12139 Prague
Czechoslovakia
Tel.: 29 34 01

Dr. med. Claudia Kamber-Ammann Bundesamt f. Gesundheitswesen Zentralstelle f. Aids-Fragen Bollwerk 27 CH-3001 Bern Tel.: 031/61 68 81

Dr. Natalia Karataeva
All Union Research Institute
Chief of Department for
Developing Health Aspects
of Healthy Lifestyles
42, Kirova Street 2 a or 10, Petroverigsky per
SU-10100 Moscow
Soviet Union
Tel.: 921/02 34

Dr. Wolfgang Kröhn AIDS-Beauftragter in Schleswig-Holstein Feldstr. 16 D-2300 Kiel Bundesrepublik Deutschland Tel.: 0431 / 562900

Dr. Dimiter Kujumdjiew
Institut für Gesundheitserziehung
Abteilungsleiter Massenmedien
Str. Ivan Denkoglu 19
BG-Sofia
Bulgaria
Tel.: 871487

Drs. Evelyne de Leeuw
Department of Health Education
Faculty of Health Sciences
Rijksuniversiteit Limburg
P.O.Box 616
NL-6200 MD Maastricht
The Netherlands

Tel.: 0031/ 43 / 887777 / 887308 / 887334

Fax: 0031/ 43 / 210920

Dirk Lesser Ministerium für Arbeit, Gesundheit Familie und Sozialordnung in BW Postfach D-7000 Stuttgart 1 Bundesrepublik Deutschland

Tel.: 0711 / 6673-7311 Dw -7007 Dw Fax: 0711 / 6673-7042

Dr. Christian Luetkens
Hessisches Sozialministerium
Abteilung III, Gesundheit
Dostojewskistr. 4
D-6200 Wiesbaden
Bundesrepublik Deutschland
Tel.: 06121/8 17-3381 DW

Isolde Meffert
AIDS-Informations- u. Schulungszentrum
bei der Landeszentrale für Gesundheitserziehung in Rheinland-Pfalz e.V.
Karmeliter Platz 3
D-6500 Mainz
Bundesrepublik Deutschland
Tel.: 06131/23 37 11

Linda Mentens
Institut de Médecine Tropicale
IPAC
Interprovincial AIDS Coordination
Nationalestraat 155
B-2000 Antwerpen
Belgium
Tel.: 03/238 58 80

Owen Metcalf Ministry of Health Hawkins Street IRL-Dublin 2 Ireland Tel.: 800942

Francis Nock
AIDES-Alsace
B.P. 252 R 7
F - 67007 Strasbourg CEDEX
FRANCE
Tel.: 88 75 73 63

Dr. Falk Oesterheld
Bundesministerium für Jugend,
Familie, Frauen und Gesundheit
Referatsleiter Koordinierungsstab AIDS
Kennedyallee 105 - 107
D-5300 Bonn 2
Bundesrepublik Deutschland
Tol : 0228 / 208 25 55

Tel.: 0228 / 308 25 55 Fax: 0228 / 308 22 21 Maria Öhgren Landstinget Förebygger AIDS Stockholm Lans Landsting Box 9099 S-10272 Stockholm Sweden

Tel.: 468 / 7372500 Fax: 468 / 7375023

Eva Fébó (Pavelka) Bezirksinstitut für Gesundheitsförderung Berek u. 9 H-7632 Pécs Hungary

Tel.: 36 - 72 - 33807

Dr. György Pethó National Institute for Health Education Ministry of Public Health Népköztársasag útja 82 H-1062 Budapest VI Hungary

Tel.: 1324-527

Veronika Potrz Jugendrotkreuz Auf'm Hennekamp 71 D-4000 Düsseldorf 1 Bundesrepublik Deutschland Tel.: 0211/3104165

Martin Raymond Principal Educationist Scottish Health Education Group WHO-Collaborating Centre Woodburn House Canaan Lane GB-Edinburgh EH10 4SG United Kingdom Tel.: 0031/4478044

Michaela Riepe Deutsche AIDS-Hilfe Nestor Str. 8/18 B-1000 Berlin 31 Bundesrepublik Deutschland

Tel.: 030 / 8969060 Fax: 030 / 896906-42 Prof. Jostein Rise
Research Center for Health Promotion,
Environment and Lifestyle
University of Bergen
Oisteins gt. 3
N-5007 Bergen
Norway
Tel.: 0047 / 05 21 27 58

Dr. Istan Rosztóczky
Albert Szent-György Medical University
H-Szeqed
Hungary
Tel.: (36-62) 12-438
(36-62) 16-315 (home)

Dr Manuela Santos Pardal Directorate-General for Health Health Education Division Alameda Afonso Henriques 45-3° P-1056 Lisbon Portugal Tel.: 11-575 603

Dr. Dieter Schmutzer Österreichische AIDS-Hilfe Lange Gasse 65 A-1080 Wien Österreich

Tel.: 0222 / 487762 431198 Fax: 0222 / 431199

Ronny A. Shtarkshall Ph.D. Dept. of Social Medicine
The Hebrew University-Hadassah
School of Public Health
P.O. Box 1172
IS-91010 Jerusalem
Israel

Angelika Sydow
Senatsverwaltung Frauen,
Jugend und Familie
Am Karlsbad 8-10
D-1000 Berlin 30
Bundesrepublik Deutschland
Tel.: 030 / 26 04 24 42

Tarja Tamminen National Board of Health P.B. 220 SF-00531 Helsinki Finland

Tel.: 00358/0/77231 Fax: 00358/0/7723442

Frau Thiemann-Zickfeld Ministerium für Arbeit, Gesundheit und Sozialordnung Koordinierungsstelle zur AIDS-Aufklärung Franz-Röder-Str. 23 Postfach 10 10 D-6600 Saarbrücken Bundesrepublik Deutschland Tel.: 0681/501-3262

Dr. Marja Riitta Tuori The finnish Student Health Service Töölönkatu 37 a SF-00260 Helsinki Finland Tel.: 558-0-441381

Dr. Hans-Peter Voigt Mitglied des Deutschen Bundestages Bundeshaus Neues Hochhaus - Zimmer 1413 D-5300 Bonn 1

Tel.: 0228 / 161 or / 317810

Prof. Dr. Peter Voss Deutsches Hygiene-Museum Direktor des Institutes für GE Lingnerplatz 1 DDR-8012 Dresden Deutsche Demokratische Republik

Tel.: 495 5080 Tlx.: 26323 dhmd

Katinka de Vries SOA-Stichting Catharyne Singel 56 NL-3511 GE Utrecht The Netherlands

Tel.: 030 / 313920 Fax: 030 / 332419

Frits Wafelbakker, mD, D.P.H.
Med. Officer Youth Health
Department of the Chief Medical
Officer of Health
Ministry of Public Health
Postbus 5406
NL-2280 HK Rijswijk
The Netherlands
Tel.: 031 / 70405822

Piet Wijnsma
Dutch Health Education Centre
Da Costakade 45
NL-3502 JC UTRECHT
The Netherlands
Tel.: 031/30910244

WORLD HEALTH ORGANIZATION

Dr. Jan Branckaerts
World Health Organization
Regional Office for Europe
Consultant, Education for Health
8, Scherfigsvej
DK-2100 COPENHAGEN
Denmark
Tel.: 31-290111-356

Dr. Rosmarie Erben World Health Organization, HQ Global Programme on AIDS Via Appia CH-1211 GENEVA 27 Switzerland 41-22/7912258

INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

World Assembly of YOUTH COPENHAGEN Attn. Demetrio Boniche Programme Director Ved Bellahoj 4 2700 Bronshoj DK-Copenhagen Denmark

Tel.: 01-607770/01

Tlx.: 16600 fotex dk. Att. Wayouth Bronshoj

Fax: 31 60 57 97

Peter Gielen International Information Centre on Self-Help and Health E. van Evenstraat 2C B-3000 Leuven Belgium

Tel.: 0032/16/283158

FEDERAL CENTRE FOR HEALTH EDUCATION

Ostmerheimer Str. 200 5000 Köln 91 (Merheim) Tel.: 0221 / 8992-1

Tlx: 8873658 bzga d Fax: 0221 / 8903460

Christa Damm Referat Aufgabenplanung und -Koordinierung, Projektablaufplanung

Dr. Ursula Krey

Referat Maßnahmen zur AIDS-Bekämpfung, Sexualerziehung, Familienplanung

Harald Lehmann

Referat Aufgabenplanung und -Koordinierung, Projektablaufplanung

Gisela Marsen-Storz

Referat Aufgabenplanung und -Koordinierung, Projektablaufplanung

Dr. Elisabeth Pott

Direktorin

Jürgen Töppich

Referat Wissenschaftliche Untersuchungen, Erfolgskontrollen, Dokumentation

Christine Vogelaar

Referat Auslandsbeziehungen

Günther Welsch

Abteilungsleiter Grundlagen und Koordinierung

SECRETARIATE

Hannelore Frechen Bundeszentrale für gesundheitliche Aufklärung Referat Wissenschaftliche Untersuchungen, Erfolgskontrollen, Dokumentation

Franz Galliat Bundeszentrale für gesundheitliche Aufklärung Referat Lehrgänge, Seminare, Erwachsenenbildung

Inge Krach-Thewissen Bundeszentrale für gesundheitliche Aufklärung Referat Auslandsbeziehungen

Helle Moller World Health Organization Regional Office for Europe Secretary, Education for Health Programme

Brigitta Prenzel-Goddard Bundeszentrale für gesundheitliche Aufklärung Referat Auslandsbeziehungen

Gabriele Rothkopf Bundeszentrale für gesundheitliche Aufklärung Referat Auslandsbeziehungen

FEDERAL CENTRE FOR HEALTH EDUCATION





WHO-COLLABORATING CENTRE FOR HEALTH EDUCATION

IIIrd European Consultation on
Public Education and AIDS Prevention
"Youth and AIDS: Health Promotion
and Health Education outside Schools"

Cologne, 8 - 11 October 1989

LIST OF WORKING PAPERS

Statements of Participating Organisations

Dr. Elisabeth Pott, Director, Federal Centre for Health Education, Cologne, Federal Republic of Germany

"Gesundheitsförderung und Gesundheitserziehung mit Jugendlichen im außerschulischen Bereich: Ein Schwerpunkt der AIDS-Prävention im Jugendalter".

Dr. Rosmarie Erben, World Health Organization, HQ, Geneva, Switzerland Global Programme on AIDS, Health Promotion Unit, Geneva, Switzerland

Demetrio Boniche, Programme Director, World Assembly of Youth, Copenhagen, Denmark

"Youth and AIDS"

International Union for Health Education (IUHE), Perugia, Italy "Policy Statement. Assuring that all people receive effective education about AIDS". In: Hygie, Vol. VII, 1988/3

Background Papers

Dr. Frits Wafelbakker. Inspector of Youth Sanitary, Medical Chief Inspection of Public Health. Ryswijk, The Netherlands

"The influence of AIDS on the sexual behaviour of young people and their partner choice".

Dr. Peter Franzkowiak. Forschungsstelle Gesundheit, Schwetzingen, Federal Republic of Germany

"Primary AIDS prevention for adolescents in the extrascholastic field: fundamentals, concepts, practice".

Co-Report

Prof. Dr. Peter Voß & Dr. Kurt Starke. German Hygiene-Museum, Dresden, German Democratic Republic.

"Results on sexual behaviour in young people (aged 16-30) in the GDR taking into particular account approaches to AIDS prevention".

General AIDS prevention strategies for young people outside schools in the countries of the European Region

Dr. Sofija Djurić-Vukićević. Health education advisor, Institute for Public Health, Beograd, Yugoslavia.

Dr. Dušanka Matijević. Head of Health Education Department in the above Institute

"Jugend und SIDA/AIDS. Gesundheitsförderung und Gesundheitserziehung im außerschulischen Bereich in Jugoslawien"

Dr. Dieter Schmutzer. Austrian AIDS-Help (ÖAH), Vienna, Austria "AIDS-Aufklärung bei Jugendlichen. Aktivitäten und Erfahrungen der Österreichischen AIDS-Hilfe (ÖAH)".

Dr. Marianna Diomidis. Ministry of Health and Social Welfare, Athens, Greece "Youth and AIDS in Greece".

Innovative models from practical experience presented in case studies

Linda Fehlung & Thomas Rugo. ABC Presse Information, Düsseldorf, Federal Republic of Germany, and Manfred Brandt, Federal Centre for Health Education, Cologne, FRG.

"AIDS-Aufklärung in Discotheken. Innovatives Aufklärungskonzept der ABC Agentur für Öffentlichkeitsarbeit", on behalf of the Federal Centre for Health Education.

Tarja Tamminen. Information Officer, M.A., The Finnish National Board of Health, Helsinki, Finland

"AIDS-related education directed towards the young outside school".

Martin Raymond. Principal Educationist, Scottish Health Education Group, Edinburgh, United Kingdom

"1988/89 Drugs/AIDS Campaign/Evaluation Report"

Possibilities and limitations of AIDS prevention outside schools with regard to hard-to-reach groups and subcultures

Doortje Braeken. Staff member Rutgers Stichting. The Hague, The Netherlands "Project: Boys, Sexuality and AIDS" and "Campaigns of Rutgers Stichting".

Ella Bar-Gai. Ministry of Education, Jerusalem, Israel "Educational kit for youth and teachers (or) group leaders. Avoiding AIDS while preserving sex".

Dr. Ronny Shtarkshall. The Hebrew University and Hadassah School of Public Health and Community Medicine, Department of Social Medicine, Jerusalem, Israel

"Egoism, altruism and secondary motivation in the reduction of HIV infection".

Angelika Sydow. AIDS-Co-ordination by the Senate Government for Women, Youth and Family Affairs, Berlin, Federal Republic of Germany.
"HIV prevalence amoung IVDUs in the Federal Republic of Germany". Study by Dr. Wolfgang Heckmann and Prof. Dr. Dieter Kleiber.

Eva Fébó. District Institute for Health Promotion, Pécs, Hungary "AIDS-Prävention in der Jugend in Ungarn und im Bezirksinstitut für Gesundheitsförderung in Pécs/Baranya".

Workshop-Reports

Federal Ministry for Youth, Family Affairs, Women and Health, AIDS Coordination Unit, Bonn, Federal Republic of Germany "Short description of the research project "Youth and AIDS" of the Federal Ministry for Youth, Family Affairs, Women and Health".

Dr. Peter Aggleton. Director AIDS Research, Faculty of Education, Bristol Polytechnic, United Kingdom & Derek Bodell, Senior Programme Officer, Health Education Authority, London, United Kingdom
"Beyond the school gates: issues in out of school HIV/AIDS education".

Anthony Preston. The Common Body Theatre Company, London, United Kingdom "An AIDS Education Project: Who's problem?"

Copies of these papers may be obtained from the Federal Centre for Health Education, Department of International Relations, Ostmerheimer Str. 200, 5000 Cologne 91.